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Mission Statement & Corporate InformaƟon

Our Mission
To provide safe and secure air and sea ports services in accordance
with internaƟonal standards and best pracƟces to ensure sustainable
growth and development while exceeding customer expectaƟons.

Our Vision
To be a leading provider of safe, secure and customer focused air and
sea port services in St. KiƩs and the OECS.

Registered Oĸce
Head Oĸce
St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
P.O. Box 963
Bird Rock
St. KiƩs
Bankers
St. KiƩs-Nevis-Anguilla NaƟonal Bank Ltd
P.O. Box 343
Central Street
Basseterre
St. KiƩs

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants
Corner of Bank Street
& West Independence Square
Basseterre
St. KiƩs
AƩorneys-At-Law
Sylvester Anthony Chambers
Lower Market Street
Basseterre
St. KiƩs

Contact InformaƟon
Seaport : Telephone (869) 465 8121/8122/8123
: Fax: (869) 465 8124
Airport : Telephone (869) 465 8472
: Fax: (869) 465 6722
Email: : info@scaspa.com
Website : www.scaspa.com
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Address by Honourable Richard SkerriƩ – Minister of Tourism
and InternaƟonal Transport
In a year when many of our neighbouring
Caribbean islands saw a decline in cruise
arrivals, it is noteworthy that St. KiƩs was able
to aƩract new business. SCASPA worked closely
with the Ministry of Tourism as a facilitator and
promoter in this aspect of our Country’s
tourism development. Largely because of this
purposeful collaboraƟon with the Ministry of
Tourism and the Tourism Authority, the cruise
passenger arrivals count rose to 447,482 with a
total of 219 cruise ship calls in the year under
review. These Þgures represent increases of
19% and 12% respecƟvely over 2008. Four
cruise vessels – Norwegian Jewel, Ruby Princess,
MSC Poesia and Celebrity Equinox - made
inaugural calls to our Port Zante. Three of these
vessels belong to lines that were already
deploying other ships to St. KiƩs. Increasing
berthing deployment is the strongest vote of
conÞdence that a cruise line can give to our
Country, and is a well deserved reward for our
Government’s
commitment
to
cruise
desƟnaƟon growth. For a second consecuƟve
year the summer programme with Carnival
CorporaƟon conƟnued successfully, but with a
slight change in that the Carnival Victory
replaced the Carnival DesƟny making calls
weekly from June to September. Ongoing
eīorts to further expand summer cruise
business at Port Zante are expected to bear
fruit in 2011.

Since taking up Ministerial responsibility for
SCASPA in February 2010, my Ministry’s eīorts
have been intensiÞed in supporƟng SCASPA’s
ongoing plans to modernize its capability to
beƩer serve its varied customers and
stakeholders. I have been pleased to learn of
the progress that had already been made in
determining
and
documenƟng
the
requirements for meeƟng SCASPA’s current and
future challenges.

SCASPA’s investment in the cruise industry goes
beyond markeƟng and maintenance of berthing
faciliƟes to include upgrading skills of key
personnel. In the past year, all of SCASPA’s
marine pilots successfully completed mariƟme
cerƟÞcaƟon training oīered by the Caribbean
MariƟme InsƟtute in Jamaica. I commend the
SCASPA Board and Management for conƟnuing
to invest in the skills of its employees in spite of
such a challenging Þnancial environment.

Like so many other corporate enƟƟes, SCASPA’s
Þnancial performance over the past year was
negaƟvely impacted by the global recession
which caused a down turn in travel and related
expenditure. Despite the resulƟng contracƟon
of economic acƟvity, SCASPA was able to
achieve some success in operaƟonal and
markeƟng areas that are directly related to
tourism – the sector on which our FederaƟon is
largely dependent for our economic
advancement.
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The aviaƟon industry also suīered signiÞcantly
as a result of the worldwide recession, which
was compounded locally by the conƟnued
closure of the Four Seasons Hotel, following
hurricane damage in the fourth quarter of 2008.
The loss of one of the FederaƟon’s premier
resorts negaƟvely impacted visitor arrivals to
Nevis, many of whom normally uƟlise our RLB
Airport as an arrival point on their journey to
our sister island. However, despite falling air
arrival
Þgures,
public-private
sector
partnerships were pursued to upgrade the RLB
Airport faciliƟes to generate new future
revenue streams and enhance service. The
beneÞts of having a private terminal (Fixed
Based OperaƟon) catering to high-end
passengers are well documented, and SCASPA
moved forward in 2009 with negoƟaƟons to
build, operate and transfer such a facility under
a concessionaire agreement. It is expected that
construcƟon of this FBO will commence in 2010
and be completed the following year.

security and safety requirements and providing
performance incenƟves where necessary,
SCASPA contributes to the successful
negoƟaƟon and implementaƟon of such airliŌ
arrangements. BA’s service to St KiƩs will be
the foundaƟon for sustaining tourism growth
from the UK and European markets.
As St. KiƩs & Nevis conƟnue to employ travel
and tourism as our main economic
development driver, SCASPA’s role will be an
increasingly pivotal one. In this regard, I am
conÞdent that the Board and Management
understand that SCASPA must constantly
improve its operaƟons and service delivery if
we are to meet the new demands of a dynamic
tourism market, including saƟsfying, at the very
least, the expectaƟons of a more discerning
foreign and local clientele. The good progress
made by SCASPA in 2009, documented in this
Annual Report, is an indicaƟon that the process
of reorganizing and rebranding SCASPA, to
ensure viable, customer-centric operaƟons, has
begun.

One major aviaƟon highlight of the past year
was the January start of a weekly BriƟsh
Airways ßight from London to St. KiƩs. This
development is the result of another
collaboraƟve eīort between SCASPA and the St.
KiƩs Tourism Authority. By maintaining the
necessary infrastructure, complying with

Hon. Richard “Ricky” SkerriƩ
Minister of Tourism and InternaƟonal
Transport
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Chairman’s Message
many issues that impact on our ability to fulÞl
our mandate.
We believe that our ability to communicate our
challenges and accomplishments to you the
stakeholders on an on-going basis is a criƟcal
aspect of the job entrusted to us as a Board.
The presentaƟon of the Annual Report also
gives us another opportunity to enlighten our
staī as to the issues directly aīecƟng them and
their corporaƟon. I therefore invite one and all
to peruse in its enƟty the contents of the
Annual Report 2009 and feel free to interact
with members of the Board or Management
with any ideas which you feel can help us
pursue in a more eīecƟve way the tasks
entrusted to us.
I also take this opportunity to welcome our new
Board Secretary in the person of Ms. Delcia
Bradley-King and to express graƟtude to our
former Secretary Dr. Louisa Lawrence who
resigned at the start of the year 2009.

OVERVIEW
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am
pleased to present the Annual Report of the St.
Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
(SCASPA) for the Þnancial year ended 31
December 2009.

ECONOMIC REALITIES AND IMPACT ON
PERFORMANCE
The year 2009 conƟnued a worrying economic
trend which started in 2008. The ECCB reports
that in 2009 the global Þnancial crisis and the
aƩending fallouts have had a signiÞcant impact
on the economies of the OECS. According to
the ECCB they are esƟmaƟng a contracƟon in
growth in the Currency Union of approximately
7.4 per cent in 2009, primarily due to declines in
the Tourism and ConstrucƟon sectors. St. KiƩs
and Nevis of course is no excepƟon. The
provisional data indicate that real GDP in St
KiƩs and Nevis contracted by 9.6 per cent in
2009, the sharpest decline on record, in
contrast to growth of 4.6 per cent recorded in
2008. (Source: ECCB Annual Economic and
Financial Review, 2009).

“The quesƟon of producƟvity and accountability
of all employees must be the cornerstone on
which we nurture and build a strong and
producƟve organizaƟon. It is only then can we
really accomplish our mission: To provide safe
and secure air and sea ports services in
accordance with internaƟonal standards and
best pracƟces to ensure sustainable growth and
development while exceeding customer
expectaƟons.” (Excerpt, Chairman’s Message,
2008 Annual Report)
I take this opportunity to greet you on the
occasion of our second Annual Report as
SCASPA conƟnues to grapple with the many
challenges of very complex and interrelated
global economic realiƟes.
As the largest
statutory corporaƟon in the FederaƟon, SCASPA
feels obliged in these Ɵmes to ensure even
greater transparency in how we tackle all of the
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It is not surprising therefore that in 2009,
SCASPA conƟnued to face contracƟon in the
level of business both at the airport and the
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seaport resulƟng in decreasing revenue for the
period under review. Thanks to the combined
eīorts of SCASPA and government in growing
the cruise ship industry, the overall reducƟon in
seaport revenue was buīered by an increase in
passenger fees of 13.5%. Whilst the Seaport
conƟnues to be the leading revenue sector
compared to the airport, (distribuƟon of
revenues between Seaport and Airport is
approximately 35% to 61% respecƟvely) we did
experience an overall drop in seaport revenue
amounƟng to 0.5% less than in 2008. Likewise,
the revenue levels at the airport experienced a
more signiÞcant drop of 10.7% reßecƟng the
reducƟon in air travel especially in regional
travel and related acƟviƟes at the airport.

eĸciency and producƟvity.
The Board is
convinced that with the introducƟon of a
revamped Performance EvaluaƟon System
management is well placed to ensure the
implementaƟon of the necessary correcƟve
measures in these Ɵmes of austerity.
FISCAL CHALLENGES AND SOLUTIONS
Over the last Þve years SCASPA has been
seriously challenged in dealing with the
management of our Þscal situaƟon as we
endeavour to ensure prudent servicing of our
debt obligaƟons. The development of our
infrastructural needs at both airport and
seaport has meant that we have had to be
heavily leveraged so as to Þnance these
essenƟal projects. RealisƟcally we are aware
that these investments do not immediately lead
to a corresponding upsurge in revenue. Thus
even though the compleƟon of the revetment
at Port Zante has bolstered the conÞdence of
stakeholders to invest in the real estate there,
SCASPA itself has not directly beneÞted from
any addiƟonal inßows of revenue as a result of
this. The expansion of the aircraŌ parking and
the resurfacing of the enƟre runway at the
Robert Bradshaw InternaƟonal Airport is
another project which had to be Ɵmetabled and
accomplished so that the country may beneÞt
from the anƟcipated increases in air travel. The
reality of the situaƟon is that the provision of
these faciliƟes has resulted in signiÞcant debt
levels for SCASPA. In conjuncƟon with the
Ministry of Finance (MOF), SCASPA has
relentlessly pursued strategic debt restructuring
as an imperaƟve for sustainability. We will
conƟnue to press for this essenƟal exercise and
hope that we receive all the necessary support
and backing of the MOF.

The economic realiƟes which we faced in 2009
and which conƟnue to loom threateningly in the
current year must serve as a clarion call for all
to recognize that moving forward it cannot be
business as usual at SCASPA. AŌer careful
analysis and consideraƟon of all the metrics, the
Board has come to the conclusion that step
changes MUST be insƟtuted within the
organizaƟon to ensure sustainability and
viability.
Since its establishment in 1993 SCASPA’s
employee roll has grown disproporƟonately to
its producƟvity raƟo. That is, whilst we have
employed scores of workers, we have not seen
a proporƟonal increase in the producƟve output
of the corporaƟon. In fact, on the contrary,
increased employment has created signiÞcant
losses in speciÞc sectors of the corporaƟon. Yet
SCASPA conƟnues to be involved in certain
acƟviƟes which can be more eĸciently and
proÞtably carried out by other stakeholder
more geared towards those speciÞc acƟviƟes.
In this very compeƟƟve environment where
neighbouring seaports move more than four
Ɵmes the cargo we move with less than 1/3 of
our staī, we know that the Ɵme has come for
serious reßecƟon and restructuring. It is in this
context that management has been asked to
present the Board with recommendaƟons that
would deal speciÞcally with the issues of

It is important to note however, that despite
the many Þscal challenges, SCASPA has been
able to meet ALL its obligaƟons over the past
Þve years without any outside assistance
whatsoever. It is a record that we intend to
maintain even as we conƟnue our ongoing
quest to restructure all our debt. Also, in spite
of signiÞcant Þnancial restricƟons we have
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The road ahead in 2010 will call for some
serious adjustments in assuring that we get
value for money in all our endeavours be it in
operaƟons or infrastructural developments. As
a corporaƟzed enƟty SCASPA in the future will
have to take full responsibility for all its acƟons.
SCASPA must undergo change to ensure that we
weather the economic storms that are currently
raging and those that are yet on the horizon.
We must pursue these adjustments vigorously
now so that when opportuniƟes arise, we are
already fully geared up to take full advantage.

ensured and will conƟnue to ensure that safety
and security remain major prioriƟes.
CONSOLIDATING FOR THE FUTURE
Even as we embark on this criƟcal aspect of our
Þscal strategy, we also recognize that SCASPA
must be able to conƟnue to invest proÞtably in
the ongoing development of our infrastructure.
This is why as early as 2007 we signalled our
intenƟon to adopt and promote a new
development model that emphasizes a strategy
of public/private sector partnerships. We are
pleased to note that negoƟaƟons with several
interests aīecƟng projects such as a new Fixed
Base OperaƟon (FBO) for private aircraŌ; the
expansion of the terminal building at the RLB
Airport; and the development of port faciliƟes
in Basseterre, are showing quite promising
signs. These iniƟaƟves will conƟnue to be
vigorously pursued into the current year 2010.
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On behalf of the Board of Directors of SCASPA I
take this opportunity to thank Management and
staī and all stakeholders and partners for their
commitment, cooperaƟon and patronage.

Linkon Maynard
Chairman of the Authority
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conƟnued throughout 2009, making the year
another diĸcult one. Revenues fell even more,
and the loss, although smaller than the previous
Clearly, SCASPA
year, remained signiÞcant.
cannot conƟnue to do business as usual; hence,
in 2010, planned intervenƟons will be
introduced in an eīort to overcome the
external and internal factors which have
created this unsustainable situaƟon. These
changes, aimed at improving overall eĸciency
and Þnancial performance, will require a major
paradigm shiŌ – a dramaƟc change in the
corporate culture.
As a priority, SCASPA must improve
organizaƟonal eīecƟveness by developing a
workforce where each employee is adding value
to the business strategy. Measuring employee
performance is essenƟal if the necessary
transformaƟon is to be achieved.
The
implementaƟon of a Performance Management
System (PMS) in July last year signalled the start
of that process. The PMS will be reviewed
regularly to ensure that performance is
evaluated against speciÞc, relevant standards,
and that appropriate systems of reward and
correcƟve acƟon are Þrmly in place.
An
eīecƟve PMS will provide the right incenƟves
to staī in order to maximize producƟvity and
increase
operaƟonal
eīecƟveness.
Performance based management will be the
new way of doing business so that all of the key
stakeholders can realize the beneÞts of these
improvements.
More than before, every
employee at all levels of SCASPA will be held
accountable for demonstraƟng the behaviours
that drive organizaƟonal results.

I am delighted to greet all stakeholders as the
new General Manager and CEO of St.
Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
(SCASPA), having taken up this leadership
posiƟon in April 2010. I thank all employees,
customers and partners for the contribuƟons
they made in 2009, and look forward to their
support as we face the challenging months
ahead.
During the year in review, SCASPA celebrated
several major achievements. We were pleased
with the Ɵmely compleƟon of the audited
Þnancial statements for 2008, and proud of the
publicaƟon of our very Þrst Annual Report.
We recorded another increase in cruise
passenger arrivals, and welcomed four new
vessels to our shores. We invested heavily in
building human resources through training
locally and overseas, and were awarded second
place for overall performance in seaport
operaƟons by the Port Managers AssociaƟon of
the Caribbean.
Despite these successes,
however, SCASPA’s overall performance was
severely impacted by the state of its Þnances.

Streamlining operaƟons is a necessary step in
creaƟng a viable and an eĸcient organisaƟon.
SCASPA’s conƟnued existence and proÞtability,
as with any other business, will depend on how
cost eīecƟve the services can be provided. A
thorough evaluaƟon of processes and pracƟces
will be carried out to idenƟfy those acƟviƟes

The global Þnancial crisis that struck in 2008
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that do not add value to the business.
Streamlining will also involve rightsizing the
Organisation to retain the optimum number
and quality of employees required for
maximum productivity. The management of
SCASPA will evaluate all recommendations and
carefully weigh them to ensure that the best
interest of all parties is taken into consideration
when making the necessary decisions.

recoup the true costs of its operations. To this
end SCASPA will shortly undergo a complete
tariff review aimed at removing tariffs that are
no longer in SCASPA’s interest and thereby
creating opportunities for persons with the
requisite skill sets and abilities and additionally,
where necessary, to ensure that the tariff is
reflective of the costs associated with the
provision of the services.

In 2009, cost control and revenue generation
measures were implemented in an attempt to
reverse the financial trend. These included
introducing strict internal policies and
procedures and ensuring compliance, increasing
tug charges, and resuming the collection of
container storage fees. In 2010 there will be
need for more creative means of increasing
revenues and hence reducing the deficit and
ultimately returning a profit; therefore, many
initiatives will be implemented in pursuit of this
goal. An analysis of our operations reveals that
SCASPA has been subsidizing some aspects of its
operations. This unsustainable method of
conducting business must end if SCASPA is to
provide the quality of services demanded and

Successful companies constantly evaluate their
business practices and implement strategic
changes to maximize overall performance. The
current economic environment coupled with
SCASPA’s history of financial losses dictate that
SCASPA engages in this process as an
immediate imperative. The path immediately
ahead will be arduous, but SCASPA will emerge
revitalized, rebranded and capable of sustaining
efficient and profitable
operations.
p
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LefttoRight:GeofferyHanley;CarolEvelyn;IdrisFidelaClarke;LinkonMaynard(Chairman);CarolynAdams;AnnWigley;PeterDouglas,
UklinRichardson.
Notinphoto:KarenHughes

Members of the Authority

Members of the Authority
x

x

x

x

LinkonMaynard–Chairman
Mr. Maynard holds a Master of Business
Administration from the University of
Liverpool, UK, and a Bachelor of Science in
Natural Sciences from the University of the
West Indies. He is the Plant Manager at
Carib Brewery (St. Kitts & Nevis) Limited
and has served as Chairman of the
Authority of SCASPA from March 2005.
CarolynAdams
Ms. Adams holds a Bachelor of Arts in
Business
Administration
with
a
concentration in Management, and is a
member of the Associate–Institute of
Canadian Bankers. She is employed at the
St. Kitts-Nevis-Anguilla National Bank
Limited where she is Manager of Loans and
Advances. Her service on the Board
commenced in March 2005.

IdrisFidelaClarke
Ms. Clarke holds a Bachelor of Science in
Accounting and a Master of Business
Administration with a concentration in
International Finance. She is a Certified
Public Accountant and a Certified AntiMoney Laundering Specialist. She is the
Director General/Regulator of the Financial
Services Regulatory Department in the
Ministry of Finance. She has served for two
years on the Board of SCASPA.
CarolEvelyn
Mr. Evelyn has been employed with Harowe
Servo Controls for over 25 years, and has
held the post of Plant Manager for the past
15 years. He has served on the Board for two
years.
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x

KarenHughes
Ms. Hughes holds a Bachelor of Law and is
employed as Parliamentary Counsel in the
Ministry of Justice and Legal Affairs. Her
service on the Board commenced in 2005.

x

GeoffreyHanley
Mr. Hanley holds a Bachelor of Science in
Psychology and Social Work and a Master of
Education and Human Resources. He is the
Director of Youth in the Ministry of
Education, Youth, Social and Community
Development and Gender Affairs. He has
served on the Board for the past 4 years.

x

UklinRichardson
Mr. Richardson is the Managing Director of
KISCO Group of Companies and has 28
years’ business experience. He has served
for 8 years on the Board of SCASPA.

x

PeterDouglas
Mr. Douglas recently retired as Chief of
Security at the Eastern Caribbean Central
Bank (ECCB). His service to the Board spans
15 years.

x

AnnWigley
Ms. Wigley is employed as the Supervisor of
Social Services in the Ministry of
Education, Youth, Social and Community
Development and Gender Affairs. She has
served on the Board for 9 years.

0(0%(56ಬ5(3257
TheMembersoftheAuthoritypresenttheirreportfortheyearendedDecember31,2009.


PrincipalActivitiesandStateofAffairs
The St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority (SCASPA) was established on August 24, 1993 and
commenced operations on September 1, 1993. The principal activity of the Authority is to provide air
and sea port services to the island of St. Christopher. There were no significant changes to the nature of
the Authority’s principal activities and the state of affairs during the year.

Members
As at 31st December 2009, the Members of the Authority were:
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x

Linkon Maynard – Chairman
Carolyn Adams
Karen Hughes
Geoffrey Hanley
Uklin Richardson
Peter Douglas
Ann Wigley
Idris Fidela Clarke
Carol Evelyn

Following the resignation of Board Member/Secretary Dr. Louisa Lawrence on 1st January 2009, Mrs.
Delcia Bradley-King, who is the current Head of Corporate Affairs and Public Relations, was appointed by
the Board to act in the capacity of Secretary to the Board.


FinancialResults
The total revenue of the Authority for the year amounted to $37.9M, a reduction of 3.4% from the
previous year. Operating revenues, at $36.3M declined by $1.7M or 4.5%. This was attributable to a
10.7% decline in Airport revenues, reflective of the general downturn in economic activity resulting from
the global economic crisis which plagued the organization throughout the year. Seaport revenues were
more or less in line with results for the previous year, declining by $116,179 or 0.5%. However, a
comparative analysis of seaport revenues indicates a significant decline in revenues associated with
cargo dues (12.8%), Wharfage dues (19.3%) and Warehouse Rent (13.3%), all in line with the downward
trend in economic activity as alluded to previously. Correspondingly, there were increases in Passenger
fees (13.5%), reinforcing the Authority’s efforts and those of the Government at growing the cruise
industry; and Sale of Water which increased by $940,670 or 400%. This increase is an isolated one-off
item reflecting the reclassification of charges by the Water Department. Tug Charges income
recommenced in 2009 following a prolonged period when the Tug boat was in dry dock undergoing
extensive repairs.
Other income for the year grew by $367,510 or 30%. Increases in Donations included the provision of a
50% donation towards the cost of new Distance Measuring Equipment (DME) by the Government of
Trinidad and Tobago and a small grant from the St. Kitts & Nevis Sugar Diversification Foundation for
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some minor reconfiguration of the passenger processing area at the Robert L. Bradshaw International
Airport.
The Net Loss for the year totalled EC$5.584M, registering a 41.2% improvement over the previous year’s
Loss of EC$9.498M. Of significance, the Authority achieved an Operating Profit before Finance Costs
totalling $6.59M – an improvement of $2.25M or 51.6% over the comparative results for the previous
year.
The Statement of Comprehensive Income for 2009 indicates a Total Comprehensive Income of $13.63M.
This relates primarily to an appreciation in the market value of the airport buildings and facilities
resulting from an asset revaluation exercise conducted during the year. In accordance with the
International Accounting Standard (IAS 1), the Authority realized a net gain on revaluation of
$19,147,079, which included an impairment loss of $131,078.
General and Administrative Expenses for the year, at $23.18M, fell by $4.85M or 17.3%. While there
were moderate increases in personal emoluments, insurance costs, training and vacation provision,
these were countered by reductions in equipment maintenance, legal fees, Office supplies, overseas
travel and provision for impairment of inventories. Of significance however, is a one-off adjustment to
utilities totalling some $5.87M. This adjustment related to the correction of over-charges by the
Electricity Department totalling $5.1M and for water charges totalling $0.7M. These adjustments reflect
the significant efforts by the Authority to regularize utility charges following a comprehensive
reconciliation of these accounts during the year.
During the year, the Government advanced an additional EC$7.0M from the “Taiwanese loan facility”
which was earmarked for working capital requirements. By year end, the total advanced under this
facility was EC$31.85M. The balance of the facility (EC$5.78M) is expected to be fully disbursed by June
2010.
As with the previous year, cash flow constraints during 2009 forced the Authority to restrict capital
investment to $1.2M. Capital expenditure was restricted to items that were essential to the security and
safety of the operation. In this regard, during the year the Authority continued to pursue initiatives
towards the eventual restructuring of its debt portfolio, with the aim of reducing the heavy annual debt
service requirements. The restructuring exercise, when completed, will assist in providing a much
needed boost to the operating cash flows and financial performance of the Authority.
Finally, during the year, the Authority continued discussions with several potential investors who have
displayed a keen interest in partnering with SCASPA in the further development of both the Airport and
Seaport facilities. Members are hopeful that these discussions will bear fruit in the coming years.

EventsSubsequenttotheBalanceSheetDate
Apart from the matters discussed above, the Members are not aware at this time of any matters or
circumstances which have arisen since December 31, 2009 that have a material effect or may
significantly affect the operations of the Authority in subsequent financial years, the results of its
operations, or the state of affairs
affai of the Authority in future years.
p
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REVIEWOFOPERATIONS
FinancialPerformance
While total revenues declined by some 3.4%, the Authority ended the year on a relatively positive note
in that profits before finance cost were up by 51.6%, moving from $4.3M in 2008 to $6.6M in 2009. This
improvement in operating performance was due primarily to significant one-off adjustments in utilities
charges of $5.8M. These adjustments stemmed from a comprehensive reconciliation of charges for
electricity and water which were over-billed by the respective authorities between 2007 and 2009. The
adjustments are reflected in General and Administrative expenses which declined by up to 17.3%,
completely reversing the impact of increased depreciation associated with the revaluation of the
Authority’s assets at the RLB Airport.
As in previous years, the high level of Finance Costs for the year has had the impact of reversing
operating profits, with the Authority registering a net loss of $5.58M. This compares favourably with the
net loss for 2008 which totalled $9.5M.
The table below summarizes the financial performance of the Authority over the six-year period 2004 to
2009. Revenues over this period increased marginally except in 2006 and 2009 which experienced
reductions. Operating expenses generally followed an upward trend as well, except in 2009. This
resulted in the profit before finance costs for 2004 and 2008 being relatively the same, followed by a
sharp increase of 51% in 2009. However, these profits were eroded by the escalating increases in
finance costs over the previous five years with a slight reduction in 2009. The net result is consistent
losses which, from 2007 to 2009, are beginning to show signs of improvement in performance.

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

Revenues

29,607

31,442

30,739

31,806

39,279

37,934

OperatingExpenses

25,493

33,159

33,611

33,433

34,931

31,340

Profit/(loss)fortheyearbeforefinancecost

4,114

(1,717)

(2,872)

(1,627)

4,348

6,594

FinanceCosts

8,796

9,994

11,221

11,918

13,847

12,178

(4,682)

(11,711)

(14,093)

(13,545)

(9,499)

(5,584)

Netlossfortheyear

Revenues
The distribution of the Authority’s revenues for 2009 comprised Airport operations (35%), Seaport
operations (61%) and other areas not directly related to regular operations (4%).
4%
35%

Airport - $13.31 M
Seaport - $23.04 M
Other

- $1.59 M

61%
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Following the positive performance for 2008, Operating revenues for the year fell by 4% from last year,
moving from $38.06M in 2008 to $36.35M in 2009. This is represented by a 10% or $1.6M reduction in
Airport revenues, a 0.5% or $116,179 decrease in Seaport revenues and an increase in other revenues
totalling $367,510.

Included in the amount reported for Seaport and Airport revenues are one-off amounts which
potentially have the impact of skewing the 2009 results. In order to provide a more realistic view of the
performance for the year relative to 2008, the one-off revenue items reported in the years 2008 and
2009 have been removed from the analysis below. See graphical results below titled “Real Revenues”.
Airport revenues for 2008 include amounts relating to concession revenues of $2.27 million. This
revenue item is not derived from regular operating activities and therefore when omitted from the
Airport Revenue computation, revenues from normal activities amounted to $12.64M in 2008, as
compared to $13.31M in 2009. This increase of 5% is attributable mainly to the full implementation in
2009 of the Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) which was commenced in July 2008. Revenues from the PFC
moved from $1.85M in 2008 to $3.57M in 2009. All other Airport revenues decreased generally, in line
with reductions in economic activity.
Seaport revenues for 2009 include an amount of $901,868 relating to the sale of water which was
erroneously accrued in the years leading up to 2007. This amount was written back to revenues in 2009.
Actual sale of water in 2009 amounted to $274,251, a 16% increase from 2008. Actual Seaport revenues
net of this adjustment totalled $22.13M registering a 4% reduction from 2008. There were moderate
increases in cruise passenger fees, pilotage and harbour dues, all in line with the incremental activity in
the cruise sector. Additionally, revenues from the Tug operation amounted to $815,060, this being the
first year since this operation was resumed following a prolonged spell when the Tug was grounded for
repairs. All other Seaport revenues declined in line with reduced cargo activities.
Otherincome increased by $367,510 or 30%. This increase is largely due to donations received in the
form of assistance with the purchase of aeronautical equipment and to effect improvements to the
passenger processing area at the RLB Airport.
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RealRevenues2004Ͳ2009(EC$'M)
37.01 37.03

40.0
30.0

29.61 31.44 30.74 31.81

20.0
10.0
0.0
2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

Overall, with the exclusion of the concession revenues and sale of water adjustment, the real operating
revenues from day to day operations reduced by 1% from $35.8M in 2008 to $35.4M in 2009.
Additionally, total real revenues, inclusive of other income, increased minimally by $21,914 moving from
$37.01M in 2008 to $37.03M in 2009.



OperatingExpenses

GeneralandAdministrativeExpenses
There was a reduction of 17% in General and Administrative expenses, moving from $28.03M in 2008 to
$23.18M in 2009. This reduction is due to an adjustment to utilities expense following a comprehensive
review of electricity and water charges with the designated authority. Electricity charges amounting to
$5.1M and water charges amounting to $714,747 were reversed from SCASPA’s account due to
incorrect billings in years 2007, 2008 and 2009. This adjustment is reflected net of current period
charges which is reported in the schedule of General and Administrative Expenses as negative $1.99M.


GeneralandAdministrativeExpenses(EC$'M)
30.0
28.0
26.0
24.0
22.0
20.0
18.0
16.0
14.0
12.0
10.0

27.03

28.04
26.43

26.16
23.18

19.42

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009


Total General and Administrative expenses for 2009 before the $5.8M utilities adjustment amounts to
$29.05M, (see graph below). This amount, when compared to the expense for 2008 of $28.03M, reflects
an increase of $1.02M or 3% for the year.
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GeneralandAdministrativeExpenses
(excludingutilitiesadjustment)(EC$'M)

35.0
30.0

29.05

28.04

27.03

26.43

26.16

2005

2006

2007

25.0
19.42
20.0
15.0
10.0
2004

2008

2009

Depreciation
Depreciation increased by $1.26M, from $6.89M to $8.16M in 2009, an increase of 18%. This increase
stems primarily from the revaluation of RLB Airport Buildings which resulted in property values
increasing by $19.3M.

FinanceCosts
Finance costs amounted to $12.18M in 2009, a reduction of $1.67M or 12% from last year’s $13.85M.

FinanceCosts(EC$'M)
15.0
14.0
13.0
12.0
11.0
10.0
9.0
8.0
7.0
6.0
5.0

13.85
12.18

11.92

11.22
9.99
8.80

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

The composition of finance costs for 2009 as presented below indicates reductions of 31% and 16% in
bank changes and loan interest respectively, in line with reduced loan balances as some of the loans
begin to approach maturity. However, overdraft interest increased by 4%. This was mainly due to
generally high overdraft balances during the year resulting from revenue reductions associated with the
impact of the global economic crisis.

Financecost

2009
2008
Bank Charges
39,784
30,198
Overdraft Interest
2,889,976
2,763,665
Loan Interest
9,248,541
11,053,001
$12,178,301
$13,846,864
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FINANCE&STATISTICSDEPARTMENT
During the year, the department continued to make significant in-roads into bringing up to date its
statutory reporting obligations. To this end, the audits of the financial statements for 2004 to 2007 were
completed in June 2009, while the audit of the 2008 financial statements was completed in July last
year. This year marked the first time in six years that SCASPA was able to comply with respective
provisions of both the SCASPA Act and the Finance Administration Act as regards it reporting
requirements. The audited accounts for 2004 to 2008 were eventually laid before the House of
Assembly in November 2009.
Significantly also, 2009 marked the first time in its 16 year history that SCASPA published an Annual
Report (for 2008). This document was produced in-house and was well received by both public and
private sector officials. The department was also able for the first time to observe its statutory
obligation in respect of the preparation and submission to the Ministry of Finance its Annual Business
Plan for 2009.
During the year, the department continued to experience serious challenges with its Billing system. The
system in use is a beta or test system and operates on a platform that is no longer supported by the
manufacturer. In an effort to proactively resolve this issue, management contacted consultants from
Port Computer Services (PCS) of Jamaica who are the authors of the original software. PCS visited
SCASPA in October and were eventually contracted to carry out a full upgrade of the system which will
see the deployment of a new PROMIS/ADVANTUM system. The department has completed the test
phase and the relevant customization has been carried out by PCS. The system, once implemented, will
be used by both the Finance and Statistics Department and the Operations Department, live. Invoicing,
customer payments, the cashing function at the Sheds, as well as the gate passes will all connect live,
online and the customer accounts will also be updated automatically. It is also expected that the
statistics will be automatically generated. This new software will make processing, recording and
reporting functions much more efficient and improve on customer satisfaction. Full deployment is
scheduled for July 2010.
During the year, the department completed its restructuring exercise with the recruitment of a
management accountant. This development will go a long way in improving the quality and timeliness of
the financial reporting function. Already, we are able to see tangible improvements in key areas and
expect further improvements during 2010.
As part of its program for 2010, the department intends to:
x Undertake a comprehensive review of the procedures currently in force at all cash points
throughout the organization.
x Implement a new internal financial reporting structure to ensure that all department managers
are fully aware and are made accountable for their department’s expenditure.
x Prepare a SCASPA Accounting Procedures Manual. This will be designed to include all internal
control procedures.

SEAPORTOPERATIONS
The challenges faced by the Operations in 2010 were a continuation from the previous year, but with an
increase in the intensity and severity of the experience of 2009. Despite our efforts to improve our
processes and aggressively monitor and control our procedures, the impact of the global economic crisis
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and the contraction of the local economy created severe stress on our operations There were significant
declines in all areas where we measure our business except in cruise ship and cruise passenger arrivals.
The movement in the arrival of ships and passengers continued on its robust growth path as we enjoyed
another successful cruise season. The number of passengers increased from approximately 377,009 in
2008 to 447,482 in 2009. This represented a 19% increase over the previous year. We have also
experienced a 12% increase in cruise ship arrivals over the same time; from 196 vessels in 2008 to 219
vessels in 2009. These numbers represent a significant achievement in a time when the cruise market
globally is being affected by the many shocks derived from the instability of the cost of fuel, the threat
of terrorism and the economic decline in our major tourism markets.
A quick glance at the trend in passenger arrivals over the last 5 years indicates that our combined efforts
with the Ministry of Tourism and the Tourism Authority have produced significant rewards for the sector
and the economy in general. SCASPA has invested and continues to invest in this area to ensure that we
provide a modern competitively priced cruise facility. Our continued success however in growing our
business is not limited to what we do within the confines of the Port, but it is also dependent on how
the passengers respond to the offerings outside the Port’s compound. We will therefore endeavour to
assist all stakeholders in focussing on culture, history and eco-tourism so that we can continue to
facilitate the development of our industry.

The movement of cargo for 2009 showed a significant downturn from 364,615 tons in 2008 to 302,934
tons in 2009; a decrease of some 17%. In 2008 our growth in the movement of cargo was driven by the
construction industry, while in 2009 we have experienced decline in this area. The import of aggregates
has decreased by 18.09%, building materials has shrunk 22.91% and cement dwindled some 33.04%. We
have also seen a decline in the importation of vehicles, fuel oils, and exports and the volume of
transhipped cargo has diminished.
The size of our population and the demand for goods and services are the factors that directly affect the
movement of cargo through our Port. Unless we can significantly increase our throughput by expanding
our capability for transhipment we will be held hostage by these uncontrollable factors. Our approach
has been and continues to be one where we have focused on our core competence, relentlessly manage
costs and maintain a long-term view by being loyal to our customers, employees and our suppliers. We
must position ourselves to thrive when the market shifts.
During 2009 we experienced several hindrances that impeded our thrust for greater efficiencies and
provision of reliable service. Our ordeal included the capsizing of a vessel alongside our RoRo berth
which hindered our capacity to carry on our usual trade and resulted in this Authority expending
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substantial resources to dredge the berth. The condition of Transit Facility One also provided us with
several logistical hurdles that we had to surmount any time there was a threat of a hurricane. We were
forced to be creative in responding to secure our customers’ cargo.
We also had to contend with the MV Smarty that was abandoned in our harbour. We had to relocate
the vessel a number of times to mitigate the risk to lives and our infrastructure. Twice we utilized our
marine resources at huge cost to the Authority to recover the vessel as it went drifting. The location of
the vessel still poses a risk to shipping.
Despite these difficulties we were able to be judged second to St. Lucia Marine Terminals by The Port
Managers Association of the Caribbean (PMAC) for our overall performance in 2009. We were also able
to re-implement our storage charges, readjust our Tug Fees to bring them in line with the cost of the
service and we performed a hydrographic survey of the Basseterre harbour which was completed in late
2009.
We have continued our program of assertively analyzing our processes and procedures. Our aim is to
improve our efficiency and be more competitive and offer a wider array of services that meets our
customers’ needs. Our constant evaluation of our human resources, and the quality of our customer
service have indicated that there still exists a considerable gap between our goals and the present
realities. We have seen some improvements and will continue to undertake constant review of our
operations as we seek to improve in our public offerings.

AIRPORTOPERATIONS
As far as 2009 was concerned the general performance of the Robert L. Bradshaw International Airport
was generally fair, and in keeping the foundation which was laid in 2009 in terms of its operations and
plans.
Despite the many challenges, the airport continued with its role as one of the major gateways to the
Federation. As expected, and in light of the global economic situation, there was a general decline in
general aviation operations, and by extension, a further erosion of the revenue streams. However, the
airport continued to hold its own in terms of scheduled wide-bodied aircraft operations. During 2009,
British Airways commenced its once – weekly flight, and by the end of the year it had announced its
intention of adding in 2010 another flight, serving the airport, to its schedule.
While it is was not possible, due to financial constraints, to embark upon all of the various capital
projects which were identified in the airport study of 2008, the Department was able to replace the
Distance Measuring Equipment (DME); one of the vital air navigation facilities, at a cost of US
$232,000.00; which was jointly funded by the Authority and through financial assistance from the
Government of Trinidad and Tobago via the aegis of the Eastern Caribbean Civil Aviation Authority.
During 2009, the Department continued to play its pivotal role in ensuring compliance with all
international safety and security standards insofar as the Federation’s obligations are concerned, and in
respect of the protection of Civil Aviation, which critically supports the Tourism and Services Industry,
the mainstay of the national economy.
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CORPORATEAFFAIRS&PUBLICRELATIONS



Projecting a positive image continued to be a top priority for SCASPA during the year in review.
Primarily responsible for managing the company image to support the strategic goals, the Corporate
Affairs and Public Relations Department focused on improving customer service and raising SCASPA’s
profile locally, regionally and internationally.
The quality of customer service offered by an organization is one of the main factors influencing its
overall reputation. Throughout 2009 great efforts were directed towards enhancing service at the
Robert Llewellyn Bradshaw International Airport. Our customer service survey continued to be used to
capture passenger ratings of and comments about various aspects of the services provided. The
assessment was circulated monthly to the relevant service providers/stakeholders, and suggestions
made by travellers were implemented. Quarterly meetings were held with the stakeholders to discuss
the feedback and identify additional ways to improve service. A need for training was identified, and a
customer service workshop was conducted for front-line staff at the Airport. Participants represented
Immigration Department, Customs and Excise Department, shops, ground handling agents and SCASPA.
The result of these efforts has been greater attention being paid to the needs and expectations of our
customers.
The Department sought to raise SCASPA’s profile by generating publicity and news coverage. The
weekly radio programme PortCallcontinued to educate the general public about SCASPA’s operations,
services, achievements, role in economic development and contribution as a corporate citizen. In 2009
interviews were conducted on current and operational issues and staff development activities. Some of
these discussions focused on precautions taken against Swine Flu at the Airport and Seaports,
certification training of Marine Pilots, air traffic services and personal development sessions conducted
for Dockers and Operators. Additionally, articles and press releases were circulated, and public relations
events were coordinated. Efforts were directed at improving internal communication as well. A
monthly newsletter, TheBeacon, was published, replacing the quarterly newsletter.Its aim is to make
staff aware of important events, changes and accomplishments in a more timely manner.
A major project aimed at boosting SCASPA’s visibility that commenced during the year was the
redevelopment of the SCASPA website. The services of eCaribbean Limited were contracted, and the
project is expected to be completed early in 2010. Once launched, the redesigned website will serve as
an important marketing tool which will be constantly upgraded to provide current, relevant information,
particularly to persons interested in using SCASPA’s services or forming partnerships to develop
infrastructure. Other efforts geared towards increasing SCASPA’s visibility with a view to attracting
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business included participation in trade shows and conferences (e.g. Cruise Shipping Miami), and placing
advertisements in international cruise magazines such as DreamCruiseReview.
With the worldwide economic downturn, the past year was challenging. The global recession, however,
created a greater need to offer an enhanced quality of service and raise SCASPA’s profile to compete
effectively during a period when trade and travel declined.

HUMANRESOURCES
The Human Resources Department continues to provide valuable services to SCASPA’s employees,
applicants and the general public. The department’s scope of services include: employee relations; the
administration of the hiring and promotional process; labour negotiations; compensation and benefits
administration; performance management; employee training and development and compliance with
the labour laws of the Federation.
At the start of 2009 SCASPA’s staff comprised 384 employees. During the year there were 39 new hires.
These included 1 Accountant, 32 Security Officers, 2 Air Traffic Control Assistants, 2 Junior Mechanics, 1
Handyman and 1 Clerk. During the year 20 employees separated from the Authority including 13
Security Officers, 2 Dockers, 1 Clerk, 1 Foreman, 1 Cleaner, 1 Secretary and 1 Mechanic. The number of
staff employed as at December 31, 2009 was 403.
During the reporting year, the department continued the work of Improving HR related policies and
procedures. The Policy for the Payment of Acting Allowance & Honorarium was revised and
implemented and a draft Employee Education Assistance Policy was developed. The Performance
Management System was also implemented.
In keeping with SCASPA’s commitment to invest in staff training and development, opportunities were
provided for a number of staff to participate in educational and professional development programmes
during 2009. Twelve employees received professional training which was fully funded by the Authority.
These included 1 Air Traffic Control Assistant, 1 Meteorological Trainee, 2 Aeronautical Information
Services Officers, 5 Marine Pilots and 3 Secretaries. Education assistance in the form of study leave and
tuition reimbursement was also granted to 12 employees who pursued studies in areas such as
Accounting, Air Traffic Control, Port Management, Information Technology as well as subjects at the
CSEC and CAPE levels. Five employees, including 2 Security Officers, 2 Meteorological Officers and the
Chief Marine Pilot were the beneficiaries of training sponsored by external agencies.
The Human Resources Department participated in negotiations with the St. Kitts-Nevis Trades and
Labour Union for the renewal of the Memorandum of Agreement in respect of the Dockers and
Operators and the establishment of a Memorandum of Agreement on behalf of the Secretarial Staff.
However, at the close of 2009 these negotiations were not settled.
In these difficult financial times, it is extremely important that we develop high-quality and highperforming employees. To this end, we must continue to focus careful attention on the many factors
that impact our employees, including compensation/benefits, performance management, organizational
development opportunities, work environment quality and health/wellness issues.
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Senior Management Team

Errol Douglas

Rosevelt Trotman

Maxwell Bass
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Marcellus Phillip

Delcia Bradley-King

Shelley Isles
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Denzil Jones

Marilyn Rogers

Patrick O’Loughlin

Senior Management Team

Errol Douglas (up to 3rd March 2010)
B.Sc. Industrial Engineering, M.Sc. Civil Engineering
M.Sc. Structural Engineering
GeneralManager&ChiefExecutiveOfficer

Marcellus Phillip
B.Sc. Accounting, F.C.C.A
ChiefFinancialOfficer

Denzil Jones
AirportManager

Rosevelt Trotman
M.B.A.
SeaportManager









Delcia Bradley-King
B.A. English, M.A. Speech Communication
HeadofCorporateAffairs&PublicRelations

Marilyn Rogers
B.A. History
HumanResourcesManager



Maxwell Bass
HeadofSecurity&PFSO







Shelley Isles
LLB, L.E.C.
LegalCounsel

Patrick O’Loughlin
M.Sc. Port Management, Class 2 Deck Certificate,
Certificate in Advanced Fire Fighting.
QualityControlManager
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CongratulationstoallWinners




ChairmanandGeneralManagerreceivingawardsKirtleyMaynard–OperationsOfficer(Seaport)DianaProctorͲCashier
















LaunchingofSCASPA’snewwebsite 







Faces of SCASPA

HighlightsfortheYear





OperatingHighlights

FinancialHighlights
2009
EC$'000

2008
EC$'000

Operating Revenue

37,934

39,280

Capital Investment

1,216

Operating Profit

2009

2008

235

207

Cruise passengers

450,553

397,119

646

Flight movements

13,229

18,405

6,594

4,348

Airline passengers

261,193

299,706

Finance Cost

12,178

13,847

Cargo imports (tons)

281,460

327,438

Net Loss

(5,584)

(9,499)

Cargo exports (tons)

12,728

21,111

New Borrowing

7,000

Cruise calls





13,000



Where the SCASPA Dollar came from





How the SCASPA Dollar was spent



27

Annual
Report

‘09






Annual
Report

‘09

28

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Cnr. Bank Street & W. Independence Sq.
P.O. Box 1038
Basseterre
St. Kitts, West Indies
Telephone (869) 466-8200
Facsimile (869) 466-9822

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Members
St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports
Authority (the “Authority”) which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2009 and the
statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
PricewaterhouseCoopers refers to the East Caribbean Þrm of PricewaterhouseCoopers and the other member Þrms of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited, each
of which is a seperate and independent legal entity. A full listing of the partners of the East Caribbean Þrm is available on request at the above address.

29

Annual
Report

‘09

Opinion
In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority as of December 31, 2009, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

Chartered Accountants
April 26,
26 2010
Basseterre, St. Kitts
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St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Balance Sheet
As at December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

2009
$

2008
$

Assets
Current assets
Cash (note 6)
Short term investments (note 7)
Trade receivables (note 8)
Inventories (note 9)
Other receivables and prepayments (note 10)

260,171
13,473
10,829,600
1,043,295
24,397

216,005
13,473
12,181,507
1,111,156
38,827

12,170,936

13,560,968

209,552,433
818,200

197,344,692
878,050

210,370,633

198,222,742

222,541,569

211,783,710

27,768,396
36,526,090
8,567,356

27,428,661
37,689,039
8,274,288

72,861,842

73,391,988

81,630,356
13,729,543
31,851,812
79,218

88,786,112
15,840,043
24,851,812
158,785

127,290,929

129,636,752

200,152,771

203,028,740

50,963,703
22,922,389
(51,497,294)

50,963,703
5,036,604
(47,245,337)

22,388,798

8,754,970

222,541,569

211,783,710

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment (note 11)
Available for sale investment securities (note 12)

Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft (note 13)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 14)
Current portion of borrowings (note 15)

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings (note 15)
Bond payable (note 16)
Due to Government (note 17)
Deferred credit (note 18)

Equity
Government contribution
Other reserves (note 19)
Accumulated deficit

Total liabilities and equity
The notes on pages 1 to 31 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Members on April 26, 2010.
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St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Statement of Changes in Equity
As at December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

Accumulated
Deficit

Government
Contribution
$

Other
Reserves
$

14,845,800

9,854,032

(43,209,114)

(18,509,282)

Comprehensive income
Net loss for the year

–

–

(9,498,701)

(9,498,701)

Other comprehensive income
Transfer from revaluation surplus (note 19)

–

(882,064)

882,064

–

Transfer of insurance reserve (note 19)

–

(4,580,414)

4,580,414

–

Appreciation in market value of investment
securities (note 12)

–

–

645,050

Total comprehensive income

–

Balance at
December 31, 2007

645,050
(4,817,428)

Total
$

(4,036,223)

(8,853,651)

Transactions with owners
Additional government contribution (note 17)

36,117,903

–

–

36,117,903

50,963,703

5,036,604

(47,245,337)

8,754,970

Comprehensive Income
Net loss for the year

–

–

(5,584,479)

(5,584,479)

Other comprehensive income
Transfer from revaluation surplus (note19)

–

(1,332,522)

1,332,522

Depreciation in market value of investment
securities (note 12)

–

(59,850)

–

Appreciation in market value of airport
buildings and facilities (note 11 & 19)

–

19,278,157

Total comprehensive income

–

17,885,785

(4,251,957)

13,633,828

50,963,703

22,922,389

(51,497,294)

22,388,798

Balance at December, 2008

Balance at December 31, 2009

The notes on pages 1 to 31 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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–

–
(59,850)
19,278,157

St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Statement of Income
For the year ended December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)
2009
$

2008
$

36,347,802

38,060,870

492,117
387,898
380,213
160,094
79,567
44,411
41,895

676,395
–
175,242
173,558
79,706
58,392
55,392

37,933,997

39,279,555

23,184,647
8,155,528

28,037,292
6,894,100

31,340,175

34,931,392

6,593,822

4,348,163

Interest and bank charges

12,178,301

13,846,864

Net loss for the year

(5,584,479)

(9,498,701)

Operating revenue (note 20)
Other income
Insurance proceeds
Donations (note 21)
Interest on overdue balances
Miscellaneous income
Amortisation of grants
Exchange gain
Investment income

Operating expenses
General and administrative (note 22)
Depreciation (note 11)

Profit for the year before finance cost

Finance cost

The notes on pages 1 to 31 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)
2009
$
Net loss for the year

(5,584,479)

2008
$
(9,498,701)

Other comprehensive income:
Unrealised gain on revaluation of airport building and facilities (note 11 & 19)
Unrealised (loss)/gain on available-for-sale investment securities (note 12)

19,278,157

–

(59,850)

645,050

Other comprehensive income for the year

19,218,307

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

13,633,828

The notes on pages 1 to 31 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Annual
Report

‘09

34

645,050
(8,853,651)

St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Statement of Cash flows
For the year ended December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)
2009
$

2008
$

6,593,822

4,348,163

8,155,528
1,580,617
131,078
(79,567)
–
–

6,894,100
1,095,561
–
(79,706)
269,109
(13,585)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year before finance cost
Items not affecting cash:
Depreciation
Provision for impairment of receivables
Loss on revaluation of airport buildings and facilities
Amortization of grants
Provision for impairment of inventories
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Operating profit before working capital changes

16,381,478

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Short term investments
Trade receivables
Inventories
Other receivables and prepayments
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to Government

Net cash from operating activities

12,513,642

–
(228,710)
67,861
14,430
(1,162,949)
7,000,000

(1,506)
(3,065,166)
154,994
(220,448)
(861,752)
12,999,925

22,072,110

21,519,689

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

(1,216,190)

(646,060)

Interest and bank charges
Loan repayments
Bond repayments

(12,178,301)
(6,862,688)
(2,110,500)

(13,739,804)
(6,311,177)
(2,217,560)

Net cash used in financing activities

(21,151,489)

(22,268,541)

(295,569)

(1,394,912)

Net overdraft position, beginning of year

(27,212,656)

(25,817,744)

Net overdraft position, end of year

(27,508,225)

(27,212,656)

260,171
(27,768,396)

216,005
(27,428,661)

(27,508,225)

(27,212,656)

Cash flows from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 6)
Bank overdraft (note 6)

The notes on pages 1 to 31 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)
1

Formation and principal activity
The St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority (the “Authority”) was established through the Saint
Christopher Air and Sea Ports Act (the “Act”) on August 24, 1993. The Act provided for the establishment of
the Authority to provide for coordinated and integrated systems of airport and seaport services; to transfer to
and vest in the Authority the assets, liabilities and the functions of the airport division of the Ministry of
Communications and Works and for other matters connected therewith. The Authority commenced operations
on September 1, 1993. The registered office of the Authority is located at Bird Rock, Basseterre, St. Kitts.

2

Significant accounting policies
a)

Basis of preparation
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are
based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results ultimately may differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 5.
Certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been published that
became effective during the current financial year. The Authority has assessed the relevance of all such
new standards, interpretations and amendments and has concluded that these will not be relevant.
New and amended standards adopted by the Authority
The Authority has adopted the following new and amended IFRSs as of 1 January 2009:
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x

IFRS 7 ‘Financial instruments – Disclosures’ (amendment) – effective 1 January 2009. The
amendment requires enhanced disclosures about fair value measurement and liquidity risk. In
particular, the amendment requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of a fair value
measurement hierarchy. As the change in accounting policy only results in additional
disclosures, there is no impact on earnings per share.

x

IAS 1 (revised). ‘Presentation of financial statements’ – effective 1 January 2009. The revised
standard prohibits the presentation of items of income and expenses (that is, ‘non-owner
changes in equity’) in the statement of changes in equity, requiring ‘nonowner changes in
equity’ to be presented separately from owner changes in equity in a statement of
comprehensive income. As a result the Authority presents in the statement of changes in equity
all owner changes in equity, whereas all non-owner changes in equity are presented in the
statement of comprehensive income. Comparative information has been re-presented so that it
also is in conformity with the revised standard. As the change in accounting policy only impacts
presentation aspects, there is no impact on earnings per share.
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St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

2

Significant accounting policies…continued
a)

Basis of preparation…continued
Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Authority
The following standards and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory
for the Authority’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010 or later periods, but the
Authority has not early adopted them:
x

IAS 1 (amendment), ‘Presentation of financial statements’. The amendment is part of the
IASB’s annual improvements project published in April 2009. The amendment provides
clarification that the potential settlement of a liability by the issue of equity is not relevant to its
classification as current or non current. By amending the definition of current liability, the
amendment permits a liability to be classified as non-current (provided that the entity has an
unconditional right to defer settlement by transfer of cash or other assets for at least 12 months
after the accounting period) notwithstanding the fact that the entity could be required by the
counterparty to settle in shares at any time. The Authority will apply IAS 1 (amendment) from 1
January 2010. It is not expected to have a material impact on the Authority’s financial
statements.

b) Going Concern
For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Authority incurred a loss of $5,584,479 (2008:$9,498,701), its
current liabilities exceeded current assets by $60,690,906 (2008: $59,831,020) and the accumulated deficit
increased to $51,497,294 (2008: $47,245,337). These financial statements have been prepared on the
going concern basis, which assumes the Authority will continue in operation for the foreseeable future.
They do not purport to give effect to adjustments, if any, that maybe necessary should the Authority be
unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities other than the ordinary course of business.
Due to the Authority’s economic dependence on Government, its ability to continue as a going concern is
dependent on the financial support of Government along with achieving profitability and the continued
availability of bank financing. The members have received this commitment from Government and
therefore believe the requisite support will be forthcoming and hence the going concern basis of
preparation is appropriate.

c) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts
are shown in current liabilities on the balance sheet.
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St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

2

Significant accounting policies…continued
d) Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Authority will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or
delinquency in payments (more than 90 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable
is impaired.
The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the statement of income within selling, general and administrative expenses. When a trade receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited in the statement of income.
e)

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. In general, cost is determined on a
weighted average basis and includes transport and handling costs. Net realisable value is the price at
which the inventory can be realised in the normal course of business. Provision is made for slow-moving
and defective inventory and charged to the statement of income.

f)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost or revalued amount, less accumulated depreciation.
Airport buildings and facilities are shown at fair value, based on periodic valuations by external
independent valuers and management, less subsequent depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation at the
date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset, and the net amount is
restated to the revalued amount of the asset. All other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of comprehensive income
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of airport buildings and facilities are credited to
other reserves in equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged against
other reserves directly in equity; all other decreases are charged to the statement of comprehensive
income. Each year the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset
charged to the statement of comprehensive income and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost is
transferred from ‘other reserves’ to ‘accumulated deficit’.
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St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

2

Significant accounting policies…continued
f)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation…continued
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
as follows:
Runway
Deepwater Port
Buildings
Generators
Furniture and Office Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Port Equipment
Navigational Aids
Ground Handling Equipment
Mooring Buoy
Transporters and Pallets
Tools and Miscellaneous Equipment

2%
2%
4%
10%
15%-20%
20%
10%
15%
10%
5%
33 1/3%
25%-50%

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.
When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in other reserves are transferred to accumulated
deficit.
g)

Trade payables
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

h) Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Authority’s activities. Revenue is shown net of returns, rebates and
discounts.
The Authority recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific criteria have been met for the
Authority’s activities. The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved. The Authority bases its estimates on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement. Revenue is recognized as follows:
i)

Sale of goods
Sale of goods is recognized when the Authority has delivered products to the customer, the customer
has accepted the products and collectibility of related receivables is reasonably certain.
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St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

2

Significant accounting policies…continued
h) Revenue recognition…continued
ii)

Sale of services
Sale of services is recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered.

iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.
iv) Investment income
Investment income is recognized when the Authority’s right to receive payment is established.
v)
i)

Rental income
Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the relevant lease.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Authority has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

j)

Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risk and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the statement of income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

k)

Foreign Currency
Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of the Authority are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The financial statements
are presented in Eastern Caribbean dollars, which is the Authority’s functional and presentation currency.
Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency are reported at the exchange rates prevailing at the year end. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in exchange rates subsequent to the date of the transaction is included as an
exchange gain or loss in the statement of income.

l)

Financial assets
The Authority classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and receivables and
available for sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets are acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
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St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

2

Significant accounting policies…continued
l)

Financial assets…continued
i)

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. These assets are carried at amortised cost less provision for impairment.
Receivables are included in trade and other receivables. Receivables with maturities in excess of 12
months after the balance sheet date are classified as non-current assets.

ii)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date – the date on which the
Authority commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Available-for-sale
financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the statement of comprehensive income as ‘gains and
losses from investment securities’.
Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the
statement of income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the statement of
income when the Authority’s right to receive payments is established.
The Authority assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss – measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss – is removed from
equity and recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Impairment losses recognised in the
statement of income on equity instruments are not reversed through the statement of income. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit
or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the statement of income.
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St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

2

Significant accounting policies…continued
l)

Financial assets…continued
i)

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. These assets are carried at amortised cost less provision for impairment.
Receivables are included in trade and other receivables. Receivables with maturities in excess of 12
months after the balance sheet date are classified as non-current assets.

ii)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date – the date on which the
Authority commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Available-for-sale
financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the statement of comprehensive income as ‘gains and
losses from investment securities’.
Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the
statement of income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the statement of
income when the Authority’s right to receive payments is established.
The Authority assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss – measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss – is removed from
equity and recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Impairment losses recognised in the
statement of income on equity instruments are not reversed through the statement of income. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit
or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the statement of income.
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St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

2

Significant accounting policies…continued
m) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, being their issue proceeds, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the profit and loss account over the period
of the borrowings using the effective yield method.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Authority has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.
n)

Government grants
Grants from the governments are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Authority will comply with all attached conditions.
Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the statement of income over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.
Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred credit and are credited to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

3

Risk management
a)

Financial risk factors
The Authority’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Authority has not
entered into forward contracts to reduce risk exposures. The Authority’s risk management focuses on
actively seeking to minimise potential adverse affects on its financial performance. Risk management is
carried out by management based on policies set by the Board of Members.
The most significant financial risks to which the Authority is exposed to are described below:
i)

Market risk
1)

Foreign exchange risk
The Authority conducts its operations primarily in Eastern Caribbean dollars; however, some
transactions are executed in various other currencies, mainly United States Dollars. Foreign
exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency. The exchange rate of
the Eastern Caribbean dollar (EC$) to the United States dollar (US$) has been formally pegged
at EC$2.70 = US$1.00 since July 1976, hence management considers foreign exchange risk not
to be significant.
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St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

3 Risk management…continued
a)

Financial risk factors…continued
2)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Authority’s interest rate risk arises primarily from long-term borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rate expose the Authority to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at
fixed rate expose the Authority to fair value interest rate risk. The Authority’s borrowings at
variable rates are denominated in Eastern Caribbean dollars. To manage against interest rate
risk, the Authority negotiates the best rates possible and where possible considers factors such as
refinancing, reviewing options and alternative financing.
At December 31, 2009, if interest rates on variable rate borrowings had been 1% higher or
lower, with all other variables held constant, net loss for the year would have increased by
$102,151 (2008: $55,416) and decreased by $304,668 (2008: $341,456), respectively, mainly as
a result of higher or lower financing cost on floating rate borrowings.

3)

ii)

Price risk
The Authority is not unduly exposed to price risk arising from equity security investments.
Equity investments are held for strategic rather than trading purposes and in the opinion of the
Authority, the aggregate value of investments is not less than the book value. The Authority is
not exposed to commodity price risk.

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the possibility that counterparties may default on their obligations to the
Authority. The Authority’s credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments,
as well as credit exposures to customers and other receivables. Cash and cash equivalents are only
held with well-known reputable banks and financial institutions. If no independent rating exists for
customers, management assesses the credit quality of customers on an individual basis, taking into
account their financial position, credit history and other factors. The utilization of credit limits is
regularly monitored. Services rendered to customers are settled primarily in cash and cheques.
The Authority has made adequate provision for any potential credit losses and the amount of the
Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk is indicated by the carrying amount of its financial
assets. At December 31, 2009 there was significant concentration in credit risk in that $7,870,286
(2008: $7,235,606) of the gross trade receivables of $16,064,264 (2008: $16,074,412) were due
from three (2008: three) major customers.

iii)

Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash balances and the availability
of funding from an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of
the underlying operations management maintains flexibility in funding by monitoring availability
under committed credit lines including credit facilities and arrangements with Central Government.
Management regularly monitors monthly forecasts of the Authority’s liquidity reserves including
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.
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St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

3 Risk management…continued
a)

Financial risk factors…continued
iii)

Liquidity risk…continued
The table below analyses the Authority’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

1 year
$

1 to 5
years
$

Over 5
years
$

Total
$

Borrowings
Due to Government
Bond payable
Bank overdraft
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities

14,673,798
3,145,966
2,816,610
27,768,396

48,747,805
12,583,864
11,266,440
–

69,971,554
31,459,660
5,633,220
–

133,393,157
47,189,490
19,716,270
27,768,396

36,526,090

–

–

36,526,090

Total financial liabilities

84,930,860

72,598,109

107,064,434

264,593,403

14,833,971
2,355,586
2,816,610
27,428,661

52,823,559
9,422,344
11,266,440
–

80,796,096
25,911,446
8,449,830
–

148,453,626
37,689,376
22,532,880
27,428,661

37,689,039

–

–

37,689,039

85,123,867

73,512,343

115,157,372

273,793,582

As at December 31, 2009

As at December 31, 2008
Borrowings
Due to Government
Bond payable
Bank overdraft
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities
Total financial liabilities
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b)

Bank overdraft
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Borrowings
Bond payable
Due to Government

Financial liabilities

Cash
Short term investments
Trade receivables
Other receivables and prepaids
Available for sale investment securities

Financial assets

27,428,661
37,689,039
97,060,400
15,840,043
24,851,812
202,869,955

27,768,396
36,526,090
90,197,712
13,729,543
31,851,812
200,073,553

13,327,862

11,945,841

2008
$

216,005
13,473
12,181,507
38,827
878,050

Carrying value

260,171
13,473
10,829,600
24,397
818,200

2009
$

The table below summaries the carrying amounts and fair values of the Authority’s financial assets and liabilities.

131,788,743

27,768,396
36,526,090
29,298,278
11,404,013
26,791,966

11,945,841

260,171
13,473
10,829,600
24,397
818,200

2009
$

2008
$

192,800,256

27,428,661
37,689,039
95,568,529
12,555,740
19,558,287

13,327,862

216,005
13,473
12,181,507
38,827
878,050

Fair value

Fair value amounts represent estimates of the consideration that would currently be agreed upon between knowledgeable, willing parties who are
under no compulsion to act and is best evidenced by a quoted market value, if one exists.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

3 Risk management…continued

(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

December 31, 2009

Notes to Financial Statements

St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority

St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

4

Financial Risk Management
Capital risk management
The Authority’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Authority’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns and benefits for stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

5

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Judgements, estimates and underlying assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.
a)

Impairment of receivables
The Authority maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts at a level considered adequate to provide for
uncollectible receivables. The level of this allowance is evaluated by the Authority on the basis of factors
that affect the collectibility of the accounts. These factors include, but are not limited to, the length of the
Authority’s relationship with debtors, their payment behaviour and known market factors. The Authority
reviews the age and status of receivables, and identifies accounts that are to be provided with allowance
on a continuous basis. The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if the
Authority made different judgements or utilized different estimates. An increase in the Authority’s
allowance for doubtful accounts would increase the Authority’s recorded operating expenses and decrease
current assets.

b)

Estimated provision for inventory obsolescence
The Authority recognizes a provision for inventory losses when the realisable values of inventory items
become lower than cost due to obsolescence or other causes. Obsolescence is based on the physical
condition of inventory items. Obsolescence is also established when inventory items can no longer be
utilised. Obsolete goods when identified are charged to the statement of income. The Authority believes
such estimates represent a fair charge of the level of inventory losses in a given year. The Authority’s
policy is to review on a annual basis the condition of its inventory.
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

5

Critical accounting estimates and judgements…continued
c) Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Authority estimates the useful lives of its property, plant and equipment based on the period over
which the assets are expected to be available for use. The Authority reviews annually the estimated useful
lives of property, plant and equipment based on factors that include asset utilization, internal technical
evaluation, technological changes, environmental and anticipated use of the assets tempered by related
industry benchmark information. It is possible that the future results of operations could be materially
affected by changes in these estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned. A reduction in
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment would increase depreciation expense and
decrease non-current assets.

6

Cash

Cash at bank
Cash in hand

2009
$

2008
$

255,052
5,119

210,387
5,618

260,171

216,005

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of the statement of cash flows:
2009
$
Cash
Bank overdraft (note 13)

7

2008
$

260,171
(27,768,396)

216,005
(27,428,661)

(27,508,225)

(27,212,656)

Short term investment

Term deposit
- Royal Bank of Canada

2009
$

2008
$

13,473

13,473

Short term investment consist of a term deposit with a fixed interest rate of 3% per annum (2008: 3%).
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St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

8

Trade receivables
2009
$

2008
$

Seaport
Airport
Others

10,366,012
4,787,571
910,681

9,655,386
5,359,121
1,059,905

Less: Allowance for impairment

16,064,264
(5,234,664)

16,074,412
(3,892,905)

10,829,600

12,181,507

Included in seaport receivables is an amount of $3,645,501 due from St. Kitts Sugar Manufacturing
Corporation (SSMC) which has been outstanding since February 2006. The amount is not provided for since
the Authority currently occupies 30.5 acres of land owned by SSMC valued at $4,382,300 as of April 2005.
The ownership of the land is expected to be conveyed to the Authority in the near future, in settlement of this
receivable.
The credit quality of trade receivables that are neither past due not impaired can be assessed by reference to
historical information about default rates. External credit ratings are used if available.
Total fully performing trade receivables without external ratings:

New customers (< 3 months)
Existing customers ( > 3 months) - no past defaults
Existing customers ( > 3 months) – some past defaults fully
recovered

2009
$

2008
$

–
–

891,490
–

5,542,533

1,710,960

5,542,533

2,602,450

Trade receivables that are less than three months past due are not considered impaired. Based on historical
information and customer relationships, some trade receivables which are greater than three months past due
but not greater than twelve months are not considered impaired. As of December 31, 2009, trade receivables of
$5,287,067 (2008: $9,579,057) were past due but not impaired. The aging of these trade receivables is as
follows:

Up to 1 month
1 to 3 months
Over 3 months
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2009
$

2008
$

36,423
331,060
4,919,584

3,151,829
537,434
5,889,794

5,287,067

9,579,057
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St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

8

Trade receivables…continued
As of December 31, 2009, trade receivables of $5,234,664 (2008: $3,892,905) were impaired and had a
provision established. A portion of these receivables is expected to be recovered. The aging of these trade
receivables is as follows:
2009
$

2008
$

Up to 1 month
1 to 3 months
Over 3 months

–
65,391
5,169,273

62,811
124,635
3,705,459

Total impaired accounts receivable

5,234,664

3,892,905

2009
$

2008
$

The movement on the provision for impairment of receivables is as follows:

Balance, beginning of year
Provision for the year
Write-offs

3,892,905
1,580,617
(238,858)

2,797,344
1,095,561
–

Balance, end of year

5,234,664

3,892,905

The creation and release of provision for impairment of receivables is included in general and administrative
expense in the statement of income. Amounts charged to the provision for impairment of receivables are
written off when there is no expectation of receiving additional cash.

9

Inventories
2009
$

2008
$

Spares
Supplies and stationery

1,096,980
130,665

1,395,327
120,031

Less: Provision for obsolete inventory

1,227,645
(184,350)

1,515,358
(404,202)

1,043,295

1,111,156
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St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

10 Other receivables and prepayments

Other receivables
Prepaid insurance

51

2009
$

2008
$

19,886
4,511

17,301
21,526

24,397

38,827
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Cost or valuation
Accumulated
depreciation

129,164,814
(26,645,177)
102,519,637

–
26,558,550

102,519,637

106,240,972
–
–
–
–
(3,721,335)

Airport
Buildings &
Facilities
$

26,558,550

26,558,550

Closing net book
amount

At December 31, 2008

95,850
–
26,462,700
–
–
–

Opening net book
amount
Additions
Transfers
Disposals
Writeback on disposal
Depreciation charge

Year ended December
31, 2008

Land
$

11 Property, plant and equipment

(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

December 31, 2009

Notes to Financial Statements

64,565,536

(19,023,749)

83,589,285

64,565,536

18,923,588
–
47,498,328
–
–
(1,856,380)

Sea Port
Buildings &
Facilities
$

St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority

133,193

(3,348,540)

3,481,733

133,193

182,589
45,333
–
–
–
(94,729)

Furniture,
fixtures
&
office
equipment
$

170,800

(508,900)

679,700

170,800

196,000
43,600
–
–
–
(68,800)

Motor
Vehicles
$

3,396,976

(31,841,566)

35,238,542

3,396,976

4,173,348
376,484
–
(629,044)
629,044
(1,152,856)

Air and Sea
Ports
Equipment
$

–

–

–

–

73,780,385
180,643
(73,961,028)
–
–
–

Capital
Projects
$

197,344,692

(81,367,932)

278,712,624

197,344,692

203,592,732
646,060
–
(629,044)
629,044
(6,894,100)

Total
$
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Cost or valuation
Accumulated
depreciation

At December 31, 2009

Closing net book
amount

Additions
Revaluation adjustment
Depreciation charge

Year ended December
31, 2008

121,706,923
(5,418,220)
116,288,703

–
26,558,550

116,288,703

40,207
19,147,079
(5,418,220)

102,519,637

26,558,550

26,558,550

–
–
–

26,558,550

Land
$

Airport
Buildings &
Facilities
$

11 Property, plant and equipment…continued

(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

December 31, 2009

Notes to Financial Statements

62,741,632

(20,883,471)

83,625,103

62,741,632

35,818
–
(1,859,722)

64,565,536

Sea Port
Buildings &
Facilities
$

St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority

79,816

(3,419,575)

3,499,391

79,816

17,658
–
(71,035)

133,193

Furniture,
fixtures
&
office
equipment
$

176,400

(596,300)

772,700

176,400

93,000
–
(87,400)

170,800

Motor
Vehicles
$

3,463,602

(32,560,717)

36,024,319

3,463,602

785,777
–
(719,151)

3,396,976

Air and Sea
Ports
Equipment
$

243,730

–

243,730

243,730

243,730
–
–

–

Capital
Projects
$

209,552,433

(62,878,283)

272,430,716

209,552,433

1,216,190
19,147,079
(8,155,528)

197,344,692

Total
$

St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

11 Property, plant and equipment…continued
The airport building and facilities were re-valued by an independent property appraiser and the board of
members as at January 1, 2009, respectively as shown in the following:
$
Independent property appraisers’ valuation on control tower and
terminal buildings

55,390,231

Board members valuation on other airport buildings and facilities

1,778,300
57,168,531

As a result of the revaluation performed on the airport buildings and facilities, the Authority realised a net gain
of $19,147,079, which included an impairment loss of $131,078 on the following buildings and facilities:
$
Old fire hall
Warehouse and air cargo shed
Mechanic shop
New security guard hut

110,200
15,587
3,776
1,515
131,078

The impairment loss is the difference between the carrying value of the airport building and facilities prior to
the revaluation and the value assessed by the board of members.
$
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

129,205,021
(30,726,854)

Net book value
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St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

12 Available for sale investment securities

Cable and Wireless (St. Kitts & Nevis) Limited
119,700 shares quoted at of $6.00 each (2008: 119,700 shares of
$6.50 each at cost)
Eastern Caribbean Stock Exchange
10,000 Class B shares at $10 each-unquoted, at cost

2009
$

2008
$

718,200

778,050

100,000

100,000

818,200

878,050

The movement in available-for-sale investment securities is as follows:
$
Balance as of December 31, 2008
Loss from change in fair value

878,050
(59,850)

Balance as of December 31, 2009

818,200

13 Bank overdraft
The bank overdraft facility bears interest at a rate of 9.5% per annum (2008: 9.5%) and is secured by a
guarantee from the Government of St. Kitts and Nevis to a limit of $27 million (2008: $27 million).

14 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Utilities
Environmental levy
Insurance
Due to contractor
Trade payables
Provision for employees benefits
Others
Island enhancement fund
Passenger facility charge
Professional fees
Statutory deductions
Inland Revenue Department

2009
$

2008
$

20,018,748
5,443,455
2,257,015
2,709,452
1,648,295
778,484
638,246
384,766
248,456
212,500
186,673
–

24,011,797
4,614,643
449,933
3,260,280
2,083,013
567,788
467,306
227,912
–
840,845
263,654
901,868

36,526,090

37,689,039

The amount due to contractor represents the full and final settlement in respect of a legal dispute.
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(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

15 Borrowings
2009
$

2008
$

8,567,356

8,274,288

- long-term portion

81,630,356

88,786,112

Total Long-term debt

90,197,712

97,060,400

Loans
- current portion

The current portion of borrowings includes cumulative interest payable of $367,098 (2008: $484,279).

2009
$

2008
$

2,943,529

3,439,287

Bank of Nevis Limited #1
Loan in the original amount of EC$4,629,097 obtained to fund equipment
purchase and infrastructural development and repayable in quarterly
instalments of EC$192,810 inclusive of principal and interest through
March 31, 2013. The loan carries a fixed interest rate of 8.5% per annum.
The loan is secured by a bill of sale over equipment and is guaranteed by the
Government.
Less: current portion of loan

(620,991)

(707,550)

2,322,538

2,731,737

2009
$

2008
$

5,074,576

6,449,615

(1,657,993)

(1,907,641)

3,416,583

4,541,974

Bank of Nevis Limited #2
Loan in the original amount of EC$10 million obtained to assist with the
infrastructural development of Porte Zante and repayable in quarterly
instalments of EC$467,589 inclusive of principal and interest through
March 31, 2012. The loan carries interest at a fixed rate of 8% per annum.
The loan is guaranteed by the Government.
Less: current portion of loan
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

15 Borrowings…continued
2009
$

2008
$

Loan in the original amount of $68 million obtained to assist with the
resurfacing/enhancement of the Robert L. Bradshaw Airport facilities and
repayable in monthly instalments of EC$659,724 inclusive of principal and
interest through August 10, 2022. The loan carries interest at a fixed rate of
8.25% per annum. The loan is secured by a guarantee from the Government.

62,634,314

64,750,157

Less: current portion of loan

(2,924,303)

(2,693,492)

59,710,011

62,056,665

2009
$

2008
$

The term of the loan is 5 years from October 17, 2002. The amortization
period of the loan is 15 years with an initial moratorium on principal
payments for 2.5 years. The loan is secured by and assignment of all cruise
passenger head charges to the bank, assignment of all Port/Cargo dues
income to the bank, a lien over the borrowers account at the bank,
assignment of insurance over the cruise ship pier facilities at Porte Zante and
a guarantee by the Government supported by a letter of undertaking from the
Ministry of Finance to assist with loan repayment, if required.

16,495,307

17,953,840

Less: current portion of loan

(1,502,352)

(1,401,148)

14,992,955

16,552,692

St. Kitts-Nevis-Anguilla National Bank Limited #1

Bank of Nova Scotia
Loan in the original amount of EC$21,735,200 obtained to assist with Porte
Zante reconstruction project and repayable in 10 quarterly blended payments
of EC$709,983 inclusive of principal and interest per annum based on a
variable rate of 8.5% per annum. Quarterly repayments are to be adjusted in
the event of any increase in interest rates to an amount that will retire the
loan over the original repayment period. In addition to the final payment of
EC$709,983, the balance of principal, plus any accrued interest then
outstanding at the end of the 60th month shall also be due and payable.
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15 Borrowings…continued
2009
$

2008
$

2,006,241

2,534,268

St. Christopher and Nevis Social Security Board
Loan in the original amount of EC$5.5 million obtained on February 3, 1997
to assist with the refurbishment of the Robert L. Bradshaw International
Airport and repayable in semi annual instalments of EC$431,844
(2008: EC$346,570) inclusive of principal and interest for 15 years. The loan
carries interest at a fixed rate of 8% per annum and is guaranteed by the
Government.
Less: current portion of loan

(1,191,699)

(882,577)

814,542

1,651,691

2009
$

2008
$

218,485

363,141

(145,146)

(146,554)

73,339

216,587

2009
$

2008
$

825,260

1,570,092

Caisse Francaise de Developpement 801J
Loan in the original amount of US$425,765 (EC$1,149,565) obtained to
assist with Robert L. Bradshaw Airport expansion project, repayable in 16
semi-annual instalments inclusive of principal and interest through
October 31, 2011. The loan carries interest at a fixed rate of 4.0% per
annum and is secured by the Government.
Less: current portion of loan

Caisse Francaise de Developpement 802M
Loan in the original amount of US$1,910,537 (EC$5,158,450) obtained to
assist with the construction of a control tower. Repayable in 20 equal semiannual instalments inclusive of principal and interest through April 30, 2011
carries interest at a fixed rate of 7.17% per annum and is secured by the
Government.
Less: current portion of loan

(524,872)
300,388
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(535,326)
1,034,766

St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

16 Bond payable
2009
$

2008
$

Principal
Accrued interest

14,267,500
146,638

16,462,500
169,198

Less: Unamortized discount

14,414,138
(684,595)

16,631,698
(791,655)

13,729,543

15,840,043

The Authority issued a 15-year bond on May 24, 2001 to assist with the refurbishment of sea defence
infrastructure in the amount of $21,950,000 which bears interest at 10% per annum and matures on
May 24, 2016. Repayments are made in equal semi-annual instalments of $1,097,500 inclusive of principal and
interest.

17 Due to Government
Due to Government represents a loan from Central Government to the Authority for working capital support
and carries a fixed interest rate of 5.5% per annum and is repayable in 34 semi-annual instalments of
$1,111,739. The loan is not yet fully drawn down.
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18

1,989,189

Original
Value of
Grants
$
(1,830,404)

Accumulated
Amortisation
2008
$
(79,567)

Amortisation
2009
$
(1,909,971)

79,218

Accumulated Written down
Amortisation
value
2009
2009
$
$

158,785

Written down
value
2008
$

The above grants were received from the British Development Division in the caribbean and the Canadian International Development Agency.
The grants are being recognised in income over the life of the related assets.

Transit Shed and
Maintenance Garage

Deferred Credit

(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

December 31, 2009

St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements

St. Christopher Air and Seaports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

19 Other reserves

Revaluation reserve-Property, plant and equipment
Revaluation reserve- Available for sale investment securities

2009
$

2008
$

22,337,189
585,200

4,391,554
645,050

22,922,389

5,036,604

2009
$

2008
$

The movement in other reserves may be summarised as follows:

Balance, beginning of year
Appreciation in market value of airport buildings and facilities
(Depreciation)/appreciation in market value of investment securities
Transfer from revaluation surplus to accumulated deficit
Transfer of insurance reserve

5,036,604
19,278,157
(59,850)
(1,332,522)
–

9,854,032
–
645,050
(882,064)
(4,580,414)

Balance, end of year

22,922,389

5,036,604

Revaluation reserve- Property, plant and equipment
The revaluation surplus arose as a result of the revaluation of airport buildings and facilities. The revaluation
was performed by an independent property appraiser and board of members’ valuation (note 11) and was
deemed by the Authority’s board of members to approximate the market value as of January 1, 2009.
Revaluation reserve-Available for sale investment securities
The revaluation reserve arose as a result of the net appreciation in the market value of available for sale
investments with Cable and Wireless (St. Kitts & Nevis) Limited.
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20 Operating revenue
Airport Revenue
Passenger fees
Passenger facility charge
Space rental
Landing fees
Security service charge
Equipment rental
Navigational fees
Car park fees
Throughput fees
Cargo dues
Advertising income
Tailgating dues
Land rental
Overtime income
Parking fees
Warehouse rent
Sales of water
Sale of forms
Identification passes
Concession revenue
Ground handling charges
Seaport Revenue
Cargo dues
Passenger fees
Wharfage dues
Sales of water
Pilotage
Equipment rental
Cargo handling
Tug charges income
Warehouse rent
Tailgating dues
Container storage
Security service charge
Overtime income
Harbour dues
Tonnage dues
Port development and safety fees
Berthing fees
Sale of forms
Identification passes
Space rental
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2009
$

2008
$

4,898,598
3,567,107
1,392,112
1,001,663
681,980
356,348
337,160
288,113
193,209
183,220
169,995
105,416
45,164
28,025
25,553
21,464
7,965
7,557
50
–
–

5,416,493
1,850,364
1,205,580
1,124,968
765,875
436,926
483,438
325,040
259,353
248,579
203,305
137,574
45,163
20,175
63,452
26,030
13,630
8,133
1,100
2,269,340
3,070

13,310,699

14,907,588

8,990,023
3,753,571
2,576,827
1,176,119
990,184
919,019
915,715
815,060
696,977
586,493
352,245
331,164
292,912
232,986
155,448
128,257
50,275
45,768
24,000
4,060

10,314,040
3,306,585
3,192,457
235,449
889,967
1,119,169
1,104,094
–
803,570
599,668
304,720
376,537
359,872
203,314
99,692
157,237
19,823
27,809
27,779
11,500

23,037,103

23,153,282

36,347,802

38,060,870

St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

21 Donations

Government of Trinidad and Tobago
St. Kitts & Nevis Sugar Industry Diversification Foundation

2009
$

2008
$

312,898
75,000

–
–

387,898

–

This represents donations received from the Government of Trinidad and Tobago and the St.Kitts & Nevis Sugar
Industry Diversification Foundation for financial assistance on the acquisition of equipment and reconfiguration
of the passenger processing area at the Robert Llewelyn Bradshaw International Airport.
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22 General and administrative expenses
2009
$
Salaries, wages and related costs
Insurance
Utilities (net of prior year over accrual)/expense
Provision for impairment of receivables
Equipment maintenance
Legal fees
Navigational fees
Ports Maintenance
Building maintenance
Training
Postage, telephone and cables
Stationery and office supplies
Professional fees
Vacation provision
Loss on revaluation of airport buildings and facilities
Overseas travel
Staff benefits
Passenger facility charge commission
Vehicle maintenance
Membership fees
Advertising
Members’ fees
Claims
Miscellaneous
Office equipment maintenance
Computer expense
Rent
Entertainment
Donations
Provision for impairment of inventories

2008
$

14,892,547
4,120,670
(1,993,049)
1,580,617
1,440,761
312,989
307,888
269,809
248,833
237,150
210,271
199,939
190,000
177,438
131,078
110,880
108,911
102,819
96,160
81,547
74,275
72,000
64,712
49,033
32,919
22,544
21,000
11,206
9,700
–

14,291,840
3,635,382
3,418,651
1,095,561
1,878,617
646,902
246,271
286,368
315,581
110,006
214,879
266,577
215,000
1,937
–
290,262
190,677
50,085
113,034
61,812
182,880
77,400
60,145
16,818
24,866
30,833
21,000
22,469
2,330
269,109

23,184,647

28,037,292

The utilities credit balance of $1,993,049 for the year ended December 31, 2009 arose due to the reversal of
over-accruals of electricity and other charges from prior years.
2009
$
Utility charges for current year
Reversal of electricity over-accruals from prior years
Reversal of other utilities over-accruals from prior years
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2008
$

3,882,911
(5,151,608)
(724,352)

3,418,651
–
–

(1,993,049)

3,418,651

St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

23 Related party transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.
The Authority enters into a number of business transactions with statutory bodies and other government
entities in the normal course of business.
The following amounts were due to/from Government as at December 31, 2009 and 2008:

Due to Government-Ministry of Finance

2009
$

2008
$

31,851,812

24,851,812

Included in liabilities are the following amounts due to Government departments and quasi Government
entities:

St. Kitts-Nevis-Anguilla National Bank Limited
Central Government Departments
Statutory Boards and Corporations
National Caribbean Insurance Company Limited

2009
$

2008
$

90,402,710
27,555,124
8,091,633
2,257,015

92,178,818
25,141,577
7,616,894
449,932

128,306,482

125,387,221

Included in trade and other receivables are the following amounts due from Government departments and quasi
Government entities:

St. Kitts Sugar Manufacturing Corporation
Other Government Institutions
Nevis Air and Sea Ports Authority

2008
$

2007
$

3,645,501
409,473
284,158

3,645,501
362,867
247,750

4,339,132

4,256,118

2008
$

2007
$

184,548

205,917

Included in cash and cash equivalents are amounts held with:

St. Kitts-Nevis-Anguilla National Bank Limited
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23 Related party transactions…continued
Included in expenses are the following transactions with related parties:
2009
$
General and administrative expenses
National Caribbean Insurance Company Limited
Electricity Department
Water Services Department
Solid Waste Management Corporation
ZIZ Broadcasting Corporation
St. Kitts Sugar Manufacturing Corporation
Centralised Purchasing Unit
Public Works Department

Finance cost
St. Kitts-Nevis-Anguilla National Bank Limited
St. Christopher and Nevis Social Security Board
National Caribbean Insurance Company Limited

2008
$

4,017,226
(1,678,732)
(314,317)
139,679
34,346
17,850
3,576
–

3,526,938
2,906,864
511,788
161,543
36,495
4,685
5,786
442

2,219,628

7,154,541

2009
$

2008
$

8,020,164
165,114
11,172

8,668,971
552,966
–

8,196,450

9,221,937

Key management compensation
During the year, salaries and related benefits of $869,998 (2008: $884,705) were paid and accrued to key
members of management allocated as follows:

Salaries and allowances
Gratuity
Members’ fees
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2009
$

2008
$

660,903
137,095
72,000

580,339
226,966
77,400

869,998

884,705

St. Christopher Air and Sea Ports Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
(expressed in Eastern Caribbean dollars)

24 Commitments
The Authority is committed to make the following lease payments in respect of leased premises:

Not later than 1 year

2009
$

2008
$

21,000

21,000

The Authority leases a tower at Bayfords Site, St. Kitts from the ZIZ Broadcasting Corporation. The monthly
cost amounts to EC$1,750 giving a total lease payment of EC$21,000. The contract was renewed on March 20,
2009 for a period of one (1) year.

25 Comparative figures
Four items in the financial statements have been adjusted in order to achieve a clearer or more appropriate
presentation. The comparative figures have been similarly adjusted in order to achieve comparability with the
current period. The items which have been adjusted are as follows:
a) Prepayments at December 31, 2008 has been reduced by an amount of $1,567,013.
b) Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at December 31, 2008 has been reduced by an amount of
$1,567,013.
c) General and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008 has been reduced by an
amount of $107,060 relating to interest expense on the Bond payable.
d) Interest and bank charges for the year ended December 31, 2008 has been increased by an amount
of $107,060.

Other receivables and prepayments
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
General and administrative expenses
Interest and bank charges
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Reclassified
2009
$

Reported
2008
$

38,827
37,689,039
23,184,647
13,847,854

1,605,840
37,173,039
23,077,587
13,740,794
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12,430

3,857
3,682
1,742
2,023
2,279

8,573

7,702

7,435

7,443

4,328

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

4,328

7,440

7,464

7,701

8,565

SCHD

2,251

2,021

1,693

3,665

3,853

N/SCHD

6,579

9,461

9,157

11,366

12,418

TOTAL

FLIGHTDEPARTURES

130,871 131,043

149,059 150,647

137,342 136,591

159,234 159,223

168,483 166,470

IN

36,972

51,021

60,844

77,948

99,871

PASSENGERS
INTRANS
OUT
IT

30,024
12,661
14,862
20,201
12,036

249,100

263,419

275,599

326,292

280,670

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

28

1,952

17,453

12,943

0

9,010

11,282

12,365

24,289

11,740

IMPORTS EXPORTS TRANSHIPPED EXEMPTED

CARGO(tons)

1,190

4,888

2,499

1,023

3,461

NEVIS

202
199
196
219

314,335
322,778
364,615
302,934


194


294,325

TOTAL

CruiseshipCalls

1,470

1,146

1,250

1,417

1,330

IN

680

910

937

1,056

1,198

OUT

CARGO(tons)



447,482

377,009

241,032

194,742

211,289



CruiseshipPassengers

SummaryofCargo&PassengerArrivals2005Ͳ2009(CargoPortandPortZante)

6,607

9,466

9,177

11,384

TOTAL

N/SCHD

SCHD

Year

FLIGHTARRIVALS

SummaryofAircraft&PassengerMovements2005Ͳ2009(RLBInternationalAirport)

